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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The First Presbyterian Church of Tallahassee was first 
organized in 1832 although construction on the building was 
not complete until 1838. This 1838 structure is, with some 
alterations, the same building which exists in good condition 
today. Timber used in the original structure was heart pine, 
pews were mahogany and the roof woodwork was mortised and 
pinned.

The building, as it presently exists, has an extended 
west end and a choir and organ loft has been added. In 1892 
the two rows of sash windows in the north and south walls * 
were replaced with "Gothic" pointed arched sash windows with 
diamond patterned muntins set into rectangular frames. On 
the interior these windows transcend both first floor and 
gallery. Also in 1892, the original mahogany box pews were 
removed and golden oak pews and pulpit were put in, only to 
have a modified type of box pew put back in 1932. At some 
time between 1892 and 1932 the steeple was removed to be 
replaced in 19,22 with the original bell in place. Both the 
extension of tne east wall and the addition of the choir loft 
were supervised by a local architect.

The church is classical in design with a large prominent 
east portico carried on four nearly colossal Doric columns, 
a plain entablature and cornice and pediment with clapboarded 
tympanum. The steeple is a three part composition topped with 
a slender spire. There is a clock face on each of the four 
sides of the second section and a pointed-arched louvered vent 
on each side of the third section where there is also a small 
urn on each corner. The main entrance to the church consists 
of double wooden doors with an equilaterally arched transom 
above. A series of pilasters define panels on the back wall 
of the portico. In recent years as the level of the street 
has been lowered with successive paving and widening, the stair 
to the entrance has been changed and a wrought iron railing 
added.

The plan of the church is similar to the plan of Old North 
with two longitudinal aisles and three groups of pews. Galler­ 
ies extend across the top of the north and south elevations and 
are carried on hand hewn Doric columns. The pews are modified 
box type, with no doors, and are not original.

The building occupies a prominent position in downtown 
Tallahassee, facing on a major thoroughfare. It is well main­ 
tained and in excellent condition.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The First Presbyterian Church of Tallahassee is one of 
the oldest buildings in the State capital and the onj# church 
still standing which dates from Territorial days. As the 
original house of Presbyterian worship, it has been a focal 
point of Florida history for 150 years, the ties between 
Presbyterianism and Florida government being symbolized by, 
the appointment of Reverend Henry White, a Presbyterian minis­ 
ter, as Chaplain to the Legislative Council in 1826. With 
the exception of certain alterations, the building remains as 
originally constructed, serving Tallahassee as a distinctive 
architectural landmark as well as a link with the origins and 
growth of the State.

With the grant of a charter to Tallahassee in November, 
1824, after the city's designation by Governor DuVal as the 
territorial capital, settlers and officials began flocking 
to the area. The servicing of the religious needs of the new 
inhabitants was a primary concern of the various established 
denominations. The Methodists and the Episcopalians were the 
first to establish churches in 1827 and 1829, respectively. 
Between 1827 and 1831, the Board of National Missions of the 
Presbyterian Church assigned missionaries to north Florida. 
In 1823, the Reverend Joseph Styles, an active Presbyterian 
evangelist, arrived in Tallahassee with a committee from the 
Georgia Presbytery to minister to the growing Presbyterian 
community. On November 4, 1832, after a "protracted meeting," 
the community voted to organize a church composed of two Ruling 
Elders and sixteen members. The new church was placed under 
the temporary care of Hopewell Presbytery of Darien, Georgia, 
and on February 16, 1833 it was incorporated by act of the 
Florida Legislative Council.

Subscriptions for a permanent church building were begun 
almost immediately, but not until June, 1835 were bids asked 
for construction. The lot selected was one of four designated 
by the Legislative Council along Park Avenue (then McCarthy 
Street) for church use. The building was completed in three 
years, all brick being made in a kiln belonging to Ruling Elder 
R. A.^hine. The total cost was $13,370.60, of which the
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building, pews and gallery cost $10,253.60, the porch and 
steeple $1,600 and the lots, blinds, pulpit lamps and acces­ 
sories $1,517. Financing was by the sale of pews, 40 of 44 
being sold for a total income of $12,500.00. On May 13, 1838, 
the First Presbyterian Church in Tallahassee was dedicated. 
Tne Floridian for May 5 of that year noted that "worshippers 
will by divine permission worship on Sunday the 13th. On this 
day the pews will be free and citizens invited to attend."

From its dedication to the present, the First Presbyterian 
Church has been associated with the history of Florida's 
capital city. As the city of Tallahassee prepares to celebrate 
the Sesquicentennial of its founding as Florida's territorial 
capital in 1824, the First Presbyterian Church stands on its 
original site as a visible reminder of the beginnings of the 
city and state.
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